VILLAGE OF SAYWARD
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
FEBRUARY 21, 2023 - 7:00 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The Village of Sayward respectfully acknowledges that the land we gather on is on the unceded territory
of the K'émoks First Nation, the traditional keepers of this land.

1. Call to Order

2. Introduction of Late Items

3. Approval of Agenda

Recommended Resolution:

THAT the agenda for the Regular Meeting of Council for February 21, 2023, be approved.
4. Minutes of Previous Meetings

Recommended Resolution:

THAT the minutes from the Regular Council meeting held on February 7, 2023, be adopted.

THAT the minutes from the Committee of the Whole meeting held on February 14, 2023, be
adopted.

5. Petitions and Delegation

a) Serena Gill and Sean Manzer, property owners 711 Kelsey Way RE: Development
Proposal Update

b) Mr. Chris Cowley, General Manager, Mainroad North Island Contracting LP re: Winter
Maintenance Procedures

6. Correspondence
a) Email from concerned citizen — RE: Nurses need help

b) Letter from Honourable Anne Kang, Ministry of Municipal Affairs - Growing Community
Fund (Ref: 272022)

c) Letter from Steven F. Kozuki, Executive Director, Forest Enhancement Society of British
Columbia RE: FESBC 2023 Accomplishments Update

Recommended Resolution:

THAT correspondence a) to c) be received

7. Council Reports - None



8. Reports of Committees - None

9. Mayor’s Report - None

10. Unfinished Business - None

11. Staff Reports

a)

b)

d)

Sayward Legion and Village Service Agreement (Share Shed) — Keir Gervais, CAO

Recommended Resolutions:

THAT Council receive the Sayward Legion Service Agreement - Share Shed Staff report for
information and discussion.

THAT Council approve the renewal of the Sayward Legion and Village of Sayward Working
Agreement - Share Shed for one (1) year; and,

THAT Council authorize the CAO to execute said Service Agreement on behalf of the
Municipality.

Regional Grant Opportunity — Salmon River Flood Storymap — Keir Gervais, CAO

Recommended Resolutions:

THAT the report from the Chief Administrative Officer be received.

THAT as part of the Village of Sayward’s ongoing work in relation to disaster risk
reduction that an application for financial assistance under the Intake #2 2023 Disaster
Risk Reduction / Climate Adaptation grant be authorized for submission to the UBCM in
collaboration with the Strathcona Regional District; and

THAT the Strathcona Regional District be authorized to receive and manage the funding
on behalf of the Village of Sayward if the application is successful.

Village of Sayward Audit Planning Report — Lisa Clark, CFO/CO

Recommended Resolution:

THAT Council receive the Village of Sayward Audit Planning Report for information and
discussion.

Grant Opportunity: Rural Advisory Program - Keir Gervais, CAO

Recommended Resolutions:

THAT Council receive the Grant Opportunity: Rural Advisory Program Report.

THAT Council directs Staff to complete and submit a grant application to Island Coastal
Economic Trust’s Rural Advisory Program for the purpose of funding a Community-
based Advisor for a one-year term.

12. Emergency Services/Public Works/Recreation Department Reports — None



13. Bylaws
a) Code of Conduct Amendment Bylaw No. 495, 2023

Recommended Resolution:

THAT Code of Conduct Amendment Bylaw No. 495, 2023 be given fourth and final
reading.

14. New Business
15. Public Question Period (maximum 15 minutes)

Mayor: “The purpose of the public question period is to enable citizens to ask questions of
Council about issues that are important to the citizen asking the question. Speakers are
asked to limit their questions to one each and, if time permits after everyone has had an
opportunity to ask questions, speakers may ask a second question. Citizens will be asked to
state their name and address.”

16. In Camera

Recommended Resolution:

THAT in accordance with Section 92 of the Community Charter, this Council meeting will be
closed to the public at this time in order that Council may give consideration to matters in
accordance with the following sections of the Community Charter:

e 90(1)(c) labor relations or other employee relations,

e 90(1)(k) negotiations and related discussion respecting the proposed provision of a
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of council,
could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were
held in public.

17. Adjournment



VILLAGE OF SAYWARD
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 7, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The Village of Sayward respectfully acknowledges that the land we gather on is on the unceded territory
of the K’é6moks First Nation, the traditional keepers of this land.

Present: Mayor Mark Baker
Councillor Scott Burchett
Councillor Kohen Gilkin
Councillor Sue Poulsen
Councillor Tom Tinsley

In Attendance: Keir Gervais, CAO
Lisa Clark, CFO/Corporate Officer
Jennifer Redshaw, Finance/Admin Clerk

1. Call to Order
Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM
2. Introduction of Late Items

a) Mayor Baker requested the subject of a letter of support for North Island Forestry be
added to the agenda - added to 9. Mayor’s Report.

3. Approval of Agenda

MOTION R23/40
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT the agenda for the Regular Meeting of Council for February 7, 2023, be approved as
amended.
CARRIED
4. Minutes of Previous Meetings

MOTION R23/41
MOVED AND SECONDED
THAT the minutes from the Regular Council meeting held on January 24, 2023, be adopted.

THAT the minutes from the Committee of the Whole meeting held on January 31, 2023, be
adopted.
CARRIED



Petitions and Delegation - None

Correspondence

b) Decriminalization — FAQ, Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch, Ministry of Public Safety
and Solicitor General

¢) Email from Village of Sayward resident - RE: Further examples of db ratings around the
400 area of Macmillan

d) Email from Village of Sayward resident - RE: In regards to proposed Noise Nuisance Bylaw

amendment for the consideration of Village Councillors and Mayor Baker

MOTION R23/42
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT correspondence a) to c) be received.

CARRIED

. Council Reports - None

Reports of Committees - None

Mayor’s Report

a)

b)

Mayor Baker — Designating a second Public Question Period to the beginning of all
regular Council meetings and Committee of the Whole meetings — verbal report.

MOTION R23/43
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT Council receive and discuss the public question period verbal report from Mayor
Baker; and,

THAT Council include a public question period at the beginning of regular council and
Committee of the Whole meetings; and,

THAT speakers be limited to a maximum of 2 minutes of speaking time; and,

THAT Staff be directed to prepare an amendment to Bylaw No. 416 Village of Sayward
Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015 for Council’s consideration.

CARRIED
Mayor Baker - Recommendation of creating a joint letter of support for the Forestry
Industry on Northern Vancouver Island with other North Island Mayors & Council,
Strathcona Regional District, & Indigenous Governments. Letter to be sent to the
Provincial Government addressing the current reduced Allowable Annual Cut (ACC) and
the increasingly long timeframes of obtaining permits — verbal report.

MOTION R23/44
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT Staff & Mayor Baker bring a draft letter of support for the North Island Forestry

Industry to the next regular Council Meeting.
CARRIED



10. Unfinished Business - None

11. Staff Reports

a)

Memorial Plaque for former Mayor John MacDonald — Keir Gervais, CAO

* ClIr Poulsen declared a conflict of interest and left the meeting

MOTION R23/45
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT Council receive and discuss the supplier’s proof for the Memorial Plaque for
former Mayor John MacDonald; and,

THAT Council approve the supplier proof and authorize staff to order the Memorial

Plaque, after clarifying wording with Mrs. Poulsen.
CARRIED

* ClIr Poulsen returned to the meeting

b)

2023 Strategic and Financial Planning Process — Keir Gervais, CAO

MOTION R23/46
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT Council receive the 2023 Strategic and Financial Planning Process report; and,

THAT the COW meeting planned for February 14" at 7:00pm be rescheduled to occur
1:00-7:00pm; and, be closed to the public; and,

THAT a COW meeting be planned for February 28" at 7:00pm; and,

THAT the Council meeting planned for March 7t be cancelled.

CARRIED
12. Emergency Services/Public Works/Recreation Department Reports- None
13. Bylaws
a) Revenue Anticipation Bylaw No. 493, 2023
MOTION R23/47
MOVED AND SECONDED
THAT the Revenue Anticipation Bylaw No. 493, 2023 be given fourth and final reading.
CARRIED
b) Remuneration Amendment Bylaw No. 494, 2023
MOTION R23/48
MOVED AND SECONDED
THAT Remuneration Amendment Bylaw No. 494, 2023 be given fourth and final reading.
Opposed Clir Burchett CARRIED
c) Code of Conduct Amendment Bylaw No. 495, 2023

MOTION R23/49
MOVED AND SECONDED



14.
15.
16.

17.

THAT Code of Conduct Amendment Bylaw No. 495, 2023 be given first, second and third
reading.
CARRIED
New Business- None

Public Question Period
In Camera

MOTION R23/50

MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT in accordance with Section 92 of the Community Charter, this Council meeting will be
closed to the public at this time in order that Council may give consideration to matters in
accordance with the following sections of the Community Charter:

e 90(1)(k) negotiations and related discussion respecting the proposed provision of a
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of council,
could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were

held in public.
CARRIED

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 pm

Mayor

Corporate Officer



VILLAGE OF SAYWARD
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 14, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The Village of Sayward respectfully acknowledges that the land we gather on is on the unceded traditional
territory of the K’émoks First Nation, the traditional keepers of this land.

Present: Mayor Mark Baker
Councillor Scott Burchett
Councillor Kohen Gilkin
Councillor Sue Poulsen
Councillor Tom Tinsley

In Attendance: Keir Gervais, CAO
Lisa Clark, CFO/Corporate Officer
1. Call to Order
Meeting was called to order at 1:01 PM
2. Introduction of Late Items - None
3. Approval of Agenda

MOTION C23/4
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole Meeting of Council for February 14, 2023,
be approved.

CARRIED
Petitions and Delegations - None

Correspondence - None
Council Reports - None
Reports of Committees - None

Unfinished Business - None

S A U

Staff Reports - None
10. New Business - None

11. Public Question Period
12. In-Camera



MOTION C23/5
MOVED AND SECONDED

THAT in accordance with Section 92 of the Community Charter, this Council meeting will be
closed to the public at this time in order that Council may give consideration to matters in
accordance with the following sections of the Community Charter:

e 90(1)(k) negotiations and related discussion respecting the proposed provision of a
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of council,
could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were
held in public.

CARRIED

13. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 6:54 PM

Mayor

Corporate Officer



Village of Sayward

From: Marie Beaton <mariemajor8@hotmail.com>

Sent: February 4, 2023 9:25 AM RECEIVE

To: Village of Sayward
Subject: Nurses need help FFEB 06 2023

- — -

To BC Rural Mayors and Council Members;

BC nurses who are not allowed to work in our province, sent out an email last week providing some information on
what we have encountered with the BC Government, the BC Nurses Union and the Health Authorities. We did receive
some responses from various councils asking how they could be of assistance.

The driving force of a productive, safe, well functioning society is the protection of the worker. Currently 1in 3 workers
in BC are unionized, which means that 1/3 of the workforce is dependent on unions to represent and protect the
wellbeing of its members and ensure that employment contracts are upheld. Unionized employees do not have the
legal right to protect themselves from breaches in employment contract, this responsibility has been transferred to
unions.

When employees are not protected, services to the public are not protected. And we have seen, in the last year, the
domino effect of bad government policy significantly impacting public access to services in many sectors. One of the
most significant contributing factors to the demise of our current social services, was the lack of union response to
blatant breach of policies and agreements.

Why does this matter?

If unions are not functioning in their intended purpose of holding the employer (in this case the BC Provincial
Government) accountable, there is no possible way to hold governments accountable. If we have indeed, entered a
season wherein unions are cooperating with government rather than protecting workers, we lose the ability to maintain
balance in power levels. (The YouTube video provides a detailed story of what nurses experienced with the BC Nurses
Union).

What can rural communities do?

e Many communities have rescinded mandatory vaccination policies but have not returned workers
back. Instruct your workers' unions to get these employees back to work in 30 days. Every jurisdiction will have
to take responsibility for its own actions. Step up and start the process to reinstate and provide
restitution. Then go after the BC Government for the costs of that restitution. Hold the unions accountable and
put pressure to ensure that they maintain their function. If unions become inert, we have lost a major
component needed for keeping power structures balanced.

e Many communities are struggling to keep healthcare services operational. Communities could consider the
following: own your own health unit, hire staff, cover operational costs so that healthcare providers can focus
on patient care rather than rushing appointments to pay the electric bill, and maybe...if you have the courage,
hold back some of the taxes collected to pay for these services. It has become very clear that local governments
will have to take on the brunt of this responsibility as the NDP government has only led us deeper and deeper
into collapse. (Gabriola Island has implemented something similar).

10



e Continue the public pressure on NDP decisions. Bill 4 (Trades) and Bill 36 (Healthcare Professions) has given the
BC government unprecedented power to implement authoritarian policy. If unions are not functional, there is
nothing to stop BC government from political overreach.

If local governments take responsibility to reinstate terminated workers, create parameters around provincial overreach
into local governance, and continue agitating current provincial agendas, we might have a chance. If you can't find a
way to protect your communities, well, then this is only the beginning of the end.

Sincerely,
150 BC Nurses who believe in Patient Autonomy in Medical Decision Making and the right to Personal Choice, and who
have filed a complaint against BCNU with the BC Labor Board for failure of duty in fair representation.

We can be contacted at this email or by phone to our main communications contact, Corinne Mori, 250-551-5345. Feel
free to watch the YouTube video as it gives details on what was really happening behind closed doors.

www.bcnursesfishtmandates.ca
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=86LK70KqSmg

Sent from my iPhone

11



e RECEIVED

BRITISH
COLUMBIA FER 10 2023

February 10,2023 | pmrmmmmmmm— =

Ref: 272022

Dear Mayors and Regional Chairs:

| am pleased to let you know of the significant investment our government has made to support all our
municipalities and regional districts around the province. This is in direct response to my mandate letter
to support growing municipalities and regional districts with funding for infrastructure and community
amenities.

Today Premier David Eby and | announced the B.C. building stronger communities with $1-billion
Growing Communities Fund | BC Gov News. The fund will provide a one-time total of $1 billion in direct
grants to all 188 of B.C's municipalities and regional districts. Your local government can use it to
address your community’s unigue infrastructure and amenities demands, such as recreation facilities,
parks and water treatment plants, as well as other community infrastructure. It will help communities
prepare for future growth and build the amenities needed to support new home construction, especially
with the Housing Supply Act where targets are set.

These grants will complement existing infrastructure funding programs for projects such as sewer, water
and recreation facilities. The province will distribute them to B.C.’s 188 municipalities and regional
districts by the end of March 2023. The Growing Communities Fund arises from the surplus shown in the
Second Quarter Financial Report. The province is putting this year’s surplus to work for people to
support them now and for the long term.

The province has heard from local governments about the need for infrastructure and

amenities to support their growth. infrastructure funding programs are routinely significantly
oversubscribed. For example, there were six times more requests for funding through the “Investing in
Canada Infrastructure Program Community Culture and Recreation” stream than what was available.
This one-time fund also supports priorities identified by the Union of British Columbia Municipalities
(UBCM).

The Ministry will issue a direction letter to each local government in March 2023 including further
details on this one-time direct grant. This will include information on the formula used to allocate the
funds, the amount your local government will be receiving and the province’s expectations for the use
and reporting of the funds.

As this is a direct grant from the province to each municipality and regional district in B.C., your local
government will not have to apply for the funds. Your council or board will be required to make
decisions on the use of the funds in compliance with this second letter coming in March 2023. Projects
that support neighboring First Nations communities are strongly encouraged.

w2
Ministry of Municipal Affairs Office of the Minister Mailing Address: Location:
PO Box 9056 Stn Prov Govt Parliament Buildings
Victoria BC V8W 9E2 Victoria BC V8Y 1X4
Phone: 250 387-2283
Fax: 250 387-4312 http://www.gov.bc.ca/muni

12



Mayors and Regional Chairs
Page 2

I trust you will join me in acknowledging the importance and value that this fund will have to focus on

building a secure, low emission, sustainable economy and a province where everyone can find a good

home — whether you live in a rural area, a city, or in an Indigenous community. Together we can make
life better for people in B.C., improve the services we all rely on, and ensure a sustainable province for
future generations.

I look forward to connecting with you again soon in person or virtually as | continue to tour and meet
with local elected officials. In the interim, any questions can be directed to myself at:
Minister. MUNI@gov.bc.ca. Staff are available at: LGIF.Infra@gov.bc.ca.

Sincerely,

Gy

Anne Kang
Minister
Ministry of Municipal Affairs
11
pc: The Honourable David Eby, Premier
The Honourable Katrine Conroy, Minister of Finance
Chief Administrative Officers
Okenge Yuma Morisho, Deputy Minister, Municipal Affairs
Jen Ford, President UBCM
Gary Maclsaac, Executive Director, UBCM

13



RECEIVED
Forest Enhancement FEB 1 ‘l 2023

Society of British Columbia

———— -

February 12, 2023

Dear Mayor Mark Baker and Sayward (Village) Council,

There are two main kinds of actions we can take on climate change. First, we can adapt to the changing
climate. Second, we can reduce greenhouse gases to limit or stop climate change. The Government of
British Columbia is doing both using forestry as a nature-based tool.

There are many forestry workers throughout British Columbia who are on the front lines and are taking
action on climate change, and we consider them to be climate change heroes. Behind the scenes, other
heroes also work within the BC Ministry of Forests and the Office of the Chief Forester. They work at the
crossroad of understanding where the science meets the national and international frameworks, where
the natural power of forests to reduce greenhouse gases are being actioned.

They have translated this understanding into meaningful actions in B.C.’s forests to take action, including:

1. Planting trees that otherwise would not be planted because growing trees absorb carbon dioxide.

2. Fertilizing forests to help trees grow faster, to absorb carbon dioxide faster.

3. Using woody biomass waste that otherwise would have been burned to avoid greenhouse gas emissions.
4. Storing carbon in long-lived wood products such as wooden buildings and furniture.

The Ministry of Forests, through the establishment of a new Future Forest Ecosystems Centre, is
supporting new guidance and practices to help forests become more resilient to the changing climate.
These tools tell us what tree seeds and species will be more suited at a site level as the climate changes.
The governments of BC and Canada have provided funding to turn these ideas into significant actions in
our forests. For example, $150 million deployed by the Forest Enhancement Society of BC (FESBC) resulted
in the reduction of greenhouse gases equivalent to taking 4.2 million cars off the road for a year. This is
an achievement that every British Columbian, and Canadian, can be very proud of.

The enclosed issue of the FESBC 2023 Accomplishments Update provides you with further insight into
who some of the talented staff are, and the amazing work the Ministry of Forests is doing to take action
on climate change.

/ét—@ M

Steven F. Kozuki, RPF
Executive Director, FESBC

(581) MC- 7

101 - 925 McMaster Way, Kamloops BC, V2C 6K2  Tel: 778-765-0980 Toll Free: 1-877-225-2010 FESBC.CA 14




STAFF REPORT

To: Mayor and Council
From: Keir Gervais, CAO
Subject: Sayward Legion Service Agreement - Share Shed

Meeting date: February 21, 2023

BACKGROUND

As per Council Resolution R22/67, the Village of Sayward formed a one-year Service Agreement
(Agreement) with the Sayward Royal Legion, Branch 147 (Legion) for operating the Share Shed.
The current Agreement expires on March 31, 2023.

DISCUSSION
The Legion would like to renew the Agreement with the Village for another term.
Staff support renewing the Agreement.

Included in the Legion’s responsibilities, as outlined in the Agreement, are the operating
days/hours:

The Legion will provide staffing for the Shed to maintain.at least three (3) days a week of
service with hours of operation not less than four (4) hours per day. Any changes to the
schedule that would alter a three (3) day/ four (4) hour per day

The Legion would like to amend the operating days/hours to at least four (4) days a week and
three (3) hours per day. The change results is the same minimum number of operating hours a
week, distributed over an additional day — a Sunday, which the Legion feels benefits those
customers who can only attend during weekends.

It is important to note that, due to COVID-19 restrictions, the Share Shed was closed for 2022 and
recently reopened in January 2023.

Revenues collected at the Share Shed are distributed 80/20, with 80% of all proceeds going to
the Legion and 20% of all proceeds going to the Village to help recover costs for renovations,
utilities, garbage, recycling fees and ongoing maintenance. Revenues for January were $215.30
(543.06 to the Village, $172.24 to the Legion).

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report-Sayward Legion and Village
Service Agreement (Share Shed).docx

15



RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Council receive the Sayward Legion Service Agreement - Share Shed Staff report for
information and discussion; and,

THAT Council approve the renewal of the Sayward Legion and Village of Sayward Working
Agreement - Share Shed for one (1) year; and,

THAT Council authorize the CAO to execute said Service Agreement on behalf of the Municipality.

Sincerely,

Keir Gervais
CAO

Attachment:

e DRAFT Service Agreement

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report-Sayward Legion and Village
Service Agreement (Share Shed).docx

16



Village of
Sayward

Service Agreement

April 1, 2023

Sayward Royal Canadian Legion
Branch 147

699 Sayward Road

Sayward, BC

VOP 1RO

(250) 282-5591

The Village of Sayward (the “Village”) Mayor and Council thank the Sayward Royal Canadian Legion
Branch 147 (the “Legion”) for agreeing to operate the Community Share Shed (the “Shed”).
Historically the Shed has been a place where Village and Valley residents can donate items in
reasonable condition or better to volunteers, then volunteers would offer those items to the public
by donation or set price. Reopening the Shed has been a long-standing goal for the Village and
provides good usable items to be repurposed by others, diverting then from landfill. This letter
serves to underpin the details of this Agreement between the Legion and Village for 2023-2024.

A) LEGION RESPONSIBILITIES

1. The Legion will provide staffing for the Shed to maintain at least four (4) days a week of
service with hours of operation not less than three (3) hours per day. Any changes to the
schedule that would alter a four (4) day/ three (3) hour per day operational week to be
confirmed with the Chief Administrative Officer for the Village.

2. The Legion would take every reasonable opportunity to maintain the Shed in terms of
cleanliness and ensure all items that do not meet requirements for resale are efficiently
recycled or failing this, disposed of in a timely manner.

3. The Legion agrees to adhere to all safety protocols, not blocking any exits and to ensure all
staff/ volunteers are knowledgeable on their role to working safely.

4. The Legion agrees that the Shed is secured when not staffed or open and only staff as
appointed by the Legion to be working in the Shed.

5. The Legion will be responsible for providing a safe work environment for volunteers and
workers and will advise the Village as to any safety concerns that need to be addressed for
the safe operation of the Shed.

6. Allvolunteers and staff and (by nature of being Village property), the public are accountable
to Policy 200-03 Respectful Workplace Policy.

7. Thelegion will take all reasonable means to ensure accounting is accurate and give a written
monthly report to the CAO, outlining proceeds, submission of any funds under section C of

Sayward Village Office, 652 H'Kusam Way, PO Box 29, Sayward, BC, VOP 1RO
Phone: 250-282-5512 Fax: 250-282-5511 e-mail: village@saywardvalley.ca

17



this agreement and reporting any concerns, recommendations, or opportunities. Ideally the
report would also include measures for diversion of waste to landfill. The CAO will then
prepare a Staff Report for mayor and Council.

B) VILLAGE RESPONSIBILITES

8. The Village will be responsible for funding the utilities of the Shed, the ongoing maintenance
of the Shed and will provide advanced notice of not less than four (4) business days when
general work is required at the Shed to the Legion.

9. The Village will, at its own cost, advertise the hours of the Shed in the Village Newsletter
and through Social Media sites at reasonable intervals.

C) DISTRIBUTION OF REVENUE

10. All revenues will be divided 80% to the Legion, to be allocated at their own discretion, and
20% to the Village for cost recovery for renovations and other expenses such as utilities,
garbage and recycling fees and ongoing maintenance.

11. At the close of this agreement, the Village will audit the proceeds versus costs to ensure
that proceeds did not exceed true costs. If proceeds at 20% outweigh costs as indicated in
section 11 of this agreement, the overage will be forward to the Legion to allocate at their
discretion.

D) TERM

12. The term of this agreement shall be one (1) year commencing on April 1, 2023, and expiring
March 31, 2024.

13. The Legion will contact the Village in terms of renewal of the agreement not later than
March 1, 2024, and the Village will give the Legion first right of refusal, provided either party
did not exercise their rights under section 15 of this agreement AND the terms of this
agreement have been satisfied in year one of this agreement.

14. Either party may end their responsibilities under this agreement by providing to the other
written notice of not less than two (2) months. In the case of major breach of the agreement
or safety concern, the Village can give immediate notice to the Legion and reserves the right
to shut down operations until the conditions are made safe as the landowner.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this MOU as of the date first written above.

Village of Sayward Royal Canadian Legion
Per: Per:

Keir Gervais Name

Chief Administrative Officer Title

Sayward Village Office, 652 H'Kusam Way, PO Box 29, Sayward, BC, VOP 1R0
Phone: 250-282-5512 Fax: 250-282-5511 e-mail: village @saywardvalley.ca

18



STAFF REPORT

For: Mayor and Council
Prepared by:  Keir Gervais, CAO
Subject: Regional Grant Opportunity — Salmon River Flood Storymap

Meeting date: February 21, 2023

BACKGROUND

To consider a regional grant application to the Community Emergency Preparedness Fund (CEPF)
2023 Disaster Risk Reduction Climate Adaptation grant in order to develop a Storymap for the
Salmon River Floodplain.

DISCUSSION
The intent of this funding stream is to support eligible applicants to reduce risks from future
disasters due to natural hazards and climate-related risks through the development and
implementation of:
e Accurate foundational knowledge of the natural hazards they face and risks associated with
BC’s changing climate; and
e Effective strategies to prepare for, mitigate and adapt to those risks.

Eligible applicants can submit one application per intake, or as a partnering applicant in a regional
application. It is proposed that the Strathcona Regional District will be the primary applicant in a
regional application with the Village of Sayward as a partner applicant. The deadline submission
for this grant is February 24, 2023. To be considered as a partner, the Village of Sayward is required
to submit a Council Resolution that clearly states that they authorize the Strathcona Regional
District to provide overall grant management by receiving and managing the funding on behalf of
the Village of Sayward.

If their application is successful, the Strathcona Regional District would develop a Storymap for the
Salmon River Floodplain. Story maps provide an interactive narrative along with flood risk/hazard
maps and show the history of flooding in their communities. The Salmon River Flood Storymap will
contribute to disaster risk reduction and fill a critical gap in the ability of our community to
effectively educate the public about the flood risk of this river. It will increase public preparedness
because it will reduce the likelihood or consequence of risk through modifications in human actions
and human behaviour. This is because unlike a technical engineering report a Storymap is a literacy

S:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Sayward Staff Report - 2023 Intake #2 Regional DDR-CA
Grant Application.docx

19



friendly public education tool that better appeals to ESLs (English as second language) and people
with a low degree of literacy. The Salmon River Flood Storymap is estimated to cost $45,000 to
produce.

The budget will also include funding for:

¢ Information to be translated to the Ey747juuthem traditional language.

e K’'0moks First Nation artists provide artwork and design for the Storymap.

e K'émoks First Nation member(s) to undertake a research project to try and learn more
about and history/stories that exist pertaining to floods in the Sayward area.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. THAT the report from the Chief Administrative Officer be received.

2. THAT as part of the Village of Sayward’s ongoing work in relation to disaster risk reduction
that an application for financial assistance under the Intake #2 2023 Disaster Risk
Reduction/Climate Adaptation grant be authorized for submission to the UBCM in
collaboration with the Strathcona Regional District; and

3. THAT the Strathcona Regional District be authorized to receive and manage the funding
on behalf of the Village of Sayward if the application is successful.

Written by:  Shaun Koopman — Protective Services Coordinator

Respectfully submitted,

Keir Gervais, CAO

Attachment:

e Example of Flood Storymap from Okanagan Basin

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com/

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Sayward Staff Report - 2023 Intake #2 Regional DDR-CA
Grant Application.docx

20



https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com

2/15/23, 412 PM

Okanagan Flood Portal

@ ukanagan sasin

V/ATER BOARD

Flood Maps History Changing Climate Responsibility Reducing Risk
-~ 'I.‘f—"‘ T o
20 als! T‘ F -hf‘ - .f_ 'A\ a "' 'l a B o
Ve Zi K, o] 4 | | \ | o
u - Ve - l LU ‘_# w - - - - W W '\ﬁ‘- \-/ - .

Flood Maps

Changing Climate

Responsibility

How to Prepar

21

110



2/15/23, 412 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

uKkanagan sasin
g WATER BOARD

X ;
Flood Maps History Changing Climaﬁeducﬁnegswsrksibility Reducing Risk How to Prepar

How to Prepare

Recovery

Flooding in the Okanagan - An Introduction

22

httos://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 2/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

Ukanagan sasin
WATER BOARD

City Park in Kelowna. Photo: OBWB-0OkWaterWise, 2017.

There have always been floods in the Okanagan - a valley born of water and ice. As
times change, with different weather and different ways we live on the land, the
story of flooding in the Okanagan changes with each generation. It is a story of
resilience, regeneration, balance, and community.

After highwater events in 2017 and 2018, the Okanagan Basin Water Board
(OBWB) led a valiey-wide partnership of local governments and Indigenous
communities to update the region’s floodplain mapping. This included mapping
Okanagan valley-bottom lakes (Ellison [also known as Duck], Wood, Kalamalka,
Okanagan, Skaha, Vaseux and Osoyoos) and the Okanagan River from Penticton to
Osoyoos Lake. The project report is linked here: https://www.obwb.ca/flood/

23

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 3/10



2/15/23, 412 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

) Ukandgan sasin
WATER BOARD

Lﬂ/{s the S IIX Okan8§ wo({d for roong Ther%ﬁ-{re als words Eor flood land.
iIstory anging Climate esponsi e ucing Risk ow to Prepar
but tlkFtaIks about the water... it almost sounds like t ik'wt, Whl is the word for

lake. tikt is shallower and not still like the lake..."

Richard Armstrong Syilx Okanagan Elder, Traditional Ecological Knowledge
Keeper and Syilx language instructor

24

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 4/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal
@ Ukanagan Basin
Splatsin
. . . i 1 gr iTs s .
Flood Maps History Changing Climate Res;fg D4 Reducing Risk How to Prepar

L @30y00S, - |
A lIndian Band .

i il x5, A’
- e L LSOYO0sS
. LY
R

Image: Okanagan Watershed (Basin) the area included in this project
Map of the Okanagan Valley. Map: OBWB-OkWaterWise
L 25

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 5/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal
C‘ﬁ Ukanagan sasin
3o - WATER GOARD
WA 1 INAL AL S A 11T ] I Wi\ IUOM I SY A AL N T A Ul O s LI LN

F|$Bm&!%theﬁ@%@longrtmgmm welbe%b%mgtiﬂ@yn m%@@h@tﬁ How to Prepar

» Flood Map - See the new floodplain maps and look at potential flood hazards

in your area;
» History - Scroll through old and new stories of flooding in the Okanagan
Basin;

« Our Changing Climate - How our changing climate affects our flood story;

» Mitigation - How to reduce the risk to things we value

« How to Prepare - Resources and information to prepare yourself for flooding;
» Response - Where to get information before and during a flood; and

» Recovery - Resources for flood recovery.

. Sl .
Okanagan Centre Safe Harbour Regional Park. Photo: District of Lake Country, 2017.

26

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 6/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

@_‘j Ukanagan sasin
(x.__.-) WATER BOARD

Flood Maps History Changing Climate Responsibility Reducing Risk How to Prepar

Click here for mobile user interface

Use and Limitations

The flood maps provided through this website are subject to the terms and
conditions as detailed in the conditions of use below. Okanagan Basin Water
Board and Northwest Hydraulic Consultants Ltd. (NHC) exclude all liability to any
person arising directly or indirectly from using this site and any information or
material available from it. Refer to the NHC project report for full fimitations of
information presented.

Information on this site:

is general information provided to improve understanding of local flood
hazards;

is not a substitute for independent professional advice;

is subject to the uncertainties of scientific and technical research including
study limitations, assumptions, and caveats:

may not be accurate, current or complete:

is subject to change without notice; and

may include views or recommendations which do not necessarily reflect the
views of the OBWB and project partners, or NHC, or indicate a commitment
to a particular course of action.

27

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 7110



2/15/23, 412 PM Okanagan Flood Portal
Ukanagan sasin
- = WATER BOARD
LA D\\JU Bl A IIIHJ N N Nt N N e Rl P WA R e S R TSR e D R e B e N .\J!—lt—lul Tadibrinn J A ] LR B

FIs&eMp snakaithely owprdagisionmaheut theasryiragy. curanemgatialility@Rco Prepar

correctness of information contained in linked websites.

Links to external websites do not constitute an endorsement or a
recommendation of any material on those sites or of any third-party products or
services offered by, from or through those sites. Users of links provided by this
website are responsible for being aware of which organization is hosting the
website they visit.

Through using this website, you assume all risks associated with using the website
including damage to computer.

Contact us! We want to hear from you.

Let us know how your experience with the Okanagan Basin Flood Portal has been and ask us
and questions.

E-mail: OkWaterWise @OBWB.ca

Thank you to all organizations that have contributed to this project and the
development of this flood story, including:

Okanagan Basin Water Board - Okanagan WaterWise

RegionalD" ", * “*" " Okanagan 28

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 8/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

- @‘»UKQHGQGH basin
by WATER BOARD

NEEIUINIAL DISLHIILL UL Unallagdl -a11 L Hindl Hiegl |
Flood Maps History Changifi@imaggan Nedsppndillitilmce Reducing Risk  How to Prepar
City of Armstrong
Township of Spallumcheen
City of Vernon
District of Coldstream
District of Lake Country
City of Kelowna
City of West Kelowna
District of Peachland
District of Summerland
City of Penticton
Town of Oliver
Town of Osoyoos
Splatsin First Nation
Westbank First Nation
Okanagan Indian Band
Penticton Indian Band
Osoyoos Indian Band
Government of British Columbia

This project was made possible with funding for LIDAR from Emergency
Management B.C,; and funding for flood mapping from Emergency Management B.C.
and Public Safety Canada under the National Disaster Mitigation Program, and from

the Province of B.C. administered by the Union of B.C. Municipalities under the
Community Emergency Preparedness Fund.

®ae® Emergency 'l M .. B Public Safety  Sécurité publique
At Management UBM M I canada Canada

© 2020 OBWB. A Regional District of Central Okanagan and GeoBC Production.

29

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco. hub.arcgis.com 9/10



2/15/23, 4:12 PM Okanagan Flood Portal

=~ UKanagan sasin
b WATER BOARD
¥ 0

Flood Maps History Changing Climate Responsibility Reducing Risk How to Prepar

30

https://okanagan-basin-flood-portal-rdco.hub.arcgis.com 10/10



STAFF REPORT

To: Mayor and Council
From: Lisa Clark, CFO/CO
Subject: Village of Sayward Audit Planning Report

Meeting date: February 21, 2023

PURPOSE

To advise Council of the planned visit by the auditors on February 21-23, 2023 and to provide an
overview of the planned scope and timing of the 2022 financial audit for the Village of Sayward,
including the year-end field work on-site February 21-23, 2023.

The purpose of the audit is to provide an enhanced degree of confidence to Mayor and Council,
staff, and the citizens that the financial statements of the Village of Sayward represent an
accurate statement of the financial position, performance, and cash flow of the Village, in
accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards.

BACKGROUND

The Audit Planning Report, prepared by Chan Nowosad Boates, (CNB) attached, provides an
overview of the planned audit for the Village, to be done in accordance with Public Sector
Accounting Standards and Canadian Audit Standards.

The significant financial reporting matters identified during the audit planning process that
require special consideration are listed below. The CNB audit team audit will report on each of
these items with a specific audit approach.

1. Risk of management override in financial reporting (journal entry testing)
2. Control environment

3. Revenue recognition

4. Operating expenses and capital additions

5. Deferred internet revenue

The CNB team will also bring forward recommendations for improvements in financial or
operational processes or controls in the final report which will be delivered to Council in the form

S:\\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report Village of Sayward Audit Plan .docx

31



of an Audit Findings Report at the completion of the audit. Draft financial statements are
anticipated to be presented to Council at the April 4, 2023 regular council meeting.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

THAT Council receive the Village of Sayward Audit Planning Report for information and
discussion.

Respectfully prepared,

RMe—

Lisa Clark, CFO/CO

Attachment:

e 2022 Audit Planning Report, Chan Nowosad Boates

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report Village of Sayward Audit Plan .docx

32



MENNCOOY TYNOISSIJoud a3 L
O30V 1TV NOISSA A3E3 LAV HD

mm_l_;<om D O>>OZ Z<IU




0 S3LVOYH AVSOMON NYHD

SIUEIUNODDY _mco_mmwu_o‘_n_ Umgwtmzu .,uc_ s33eog UmmOBOZ cmr_u
€702 ‘ST Ateniqa4

20T ‘TE J9qwadaQ papua JedA ayj JoA

Hoday duluue|d 1pny
piemAes jo adej|In

<
o



¥apu| sanpusddy

wieaj juswageiuy

Jugui | upny

SUOIIBAIZSQQ) PUE SUOIICWNSSY ¥ ST34

. sIaneA Hpny juedyiudig

HpNY 2yl jo adoog

IIURLIBA0CD Ylim pasiey) asoyl o3 sauinbuj jenuuy

Ueid 3pay

SINILNOD

35



36

SpJepuels Su1uN02Jy J03I35
Jllgnd ul siuawdojansp juadal pue sadueyd Suiwoddn 1o sadueyds ayl 1o} sadipuaddy Syl 39S 9sed|d .
spiepuels SunuNoOIdY

‘Asuuey| 391N yum juswaaude Suaauidua |IAID e paudis a8e|IN3YL .
:9pNJouUl sjuswaai3e MaN .

"pa1sjdwod uasq sey 1oafoud weq 9|ISEOMIN 9y .

1e3A 3yl Ul 000‘STTS 404 puel Jo 10id e paseyound a8e|iA oYL
:9pnu| s1oafoud enides maN .

‘pus 1e3A U334e pally sem Qv)

M3U Y "pud Jeah 01 Ainf wouy QYD WiIslul Se pajde adueld4 uyofr ‘aunp ui pausisal OV S,98e|IA YL .
:9pn|au) sadueyd Suiyels .
UOIIEZIURgi) JNo;,

:pouad Juaiind ayy Joj
Jpne ay3 Suluue|d ul UOIeISPISUOD OJUl UBNE] U3 aneYy eyl saSueyd Jo Alewwins e MOJ3g 1IN0 13S aAeY S\
GIDNTHT SYH 1UHAL

ESUETNEIEAN
[eldueuly 3yl JO lpNe UNo JaA0 1Y3ISIano 3uisioiaxa pue saljjigisuodsas JnoA Suidieydsip pue no 3uiAuied jo

asod.ind ayy Joj npne sy3 jo Suiwiy pue adoos pauueld ay1 Jo noA wiojul 01 uejd Jipne siy patedaid aney s



37

"3A0qe 3Y1 0] 103dSa) Y1M SUIIIUOD OU . 3I3Y] BWNSSE |{IM am ‘paplrold S| asuodsal ou §| ‘1e1ap
Jayny ul wiayj ssnasip 01 Aj3aaJip sn 10e3u0d 03 3e3isaY Jou op aseadld ‘sasnbul aA0ge 3y} INoge SUI3IUoD
10 suoiisanb Aue aaey noA pinoys oeqpaay JnoA sn apiaoid pue saLinbul anoge ay3 Japisuod NoA 18yl jse ap

ésuonoesuel) jensnun juesiyusis Aue ojul 3ulalus uoileziuedio 3yl Jo aleme NoA AlY .

¢SS pneJy 21e811W 0} paysi|qelsa sey Juawaseuew $|0J3u0d [eulalul 3yi Jo 1ySISIano
dulpnpoul ‘pneyy Ja3ep pue 12919p ‘Quanald 01 sjosluod pue sweldosd Jo YSISISAO SAIISYD BJ9Yl S| .

éuoleziuesio ayl uiyum sysid pneaj Juedijusis Aue Jo aseme noA aly .
épassalppe uaaqg Asyl aney moy pue ‘passaippe Ajpielidosdde uaaq saoueisul ayi aAey ‘os j
és3asse jo uonjenndosddesiw Jo Suipiodad

[eloueUl} 01 pPale|al INoIABYSQ |ed1Ylaun J0 1oNpuodsiw Suipnjpuj ‘suojie|n8as pue sme| Jo aoueldwod-uou
Jo pneuy padajje Jo ‘3|qissod ‘pa1radsns ‘|enioe ‘4o saJuelsu) Aue paljiluapl NOA aAeY JO ‘JO dJeme NoA aly

ISNOILSIND DONIMOTTIOLE IHL NOA HSY 34 LYHL 3HINDIY SAYYANYLS TYNCISSTIONS

I¥IN0 Nj TYNNNY

(P8 ]

FJONVNYHIAOLD HLIM GIDUVHD) 3SOH] FHL OL S



38

"020¢ ‘s Aenuga{ paudis pue palep Ja11a] Juawagesus ayl ul 10 13s ale ‘saljigisuodsal
Sauswadeuew pue ‘pne uno no SulAled ul sanljigisuodsal UInNo ‘Qpne 3yl JO SBAIRDAIQO dYl .

SILLITIGISNOASIY S, LNINIDYNYIA] ‘STLLITIFISNOLSIH YN “LIaNy 3HL 30 SIALLIIE(D

:s1@11ew SuImoj|o4 3Y3 Jo yaea
Suipnour ‘uojuido Jno 1oddns 03 palinbai JJ0Mm 1lipne Jo [9A3] Y} PaJapISuUod aaey am ‘lipne uno Suiuueld u|

'SVSd Ylm aouepaoade ul 38ejjiA 8yl JO SMO|} ysed pue ‘@ouewopiad jeioueul) ‘uoilisod jeipueul) ayi ‘syoadsal
|elialew |je ul ‘quasald Ajdie) syuswalels |elpueuly ayl Jaylaym uo uoluido ue jo uoissaldxa ayl ysnoayy
SIUaWIIIL]S |BIdUBUL BY] JO SJ3SN BY} JO dDUIPIJUOI JO 93183p Byl 2dueyua o1 S| upne ue jo asodind ay|

LIdNY 3HL 40 F40O3S



39

"(00€2S - T20T) STETS ueyl SS9
8ulaq ‘|eia] Ajges|o aue 1ey3 asoyl ueyl JaYlo ‘nOA 0} SIUSWIDILISSIL PB1IDLI00UN DIBIIUNWILLIOD [|IM B/

"SJUDLUIEIS [BIDUBULS BY] UO SIUDLUSILISSIW PaIIaII0dUn JO S103Yd
9yl 3unenieas Joj aleudosdde sujewal U Jayl@ymM WIJUOI 0} pud-JedA 1e Aljelialew SSasseal [|IM 3\ e

'220¢ 10} SanuaAal 55048 paldafoad Jo %€ Ajorewixoidde s yaiym ‘pauiwiialap uaaq
sey (000°9%S - T202) 005°9YS 40 Alljerualew Aleujwijaad e ‘Ssyuswalels |ejoueulj poliad Jualind 9yl 104

"SIUSWIALL]S [BIDUBUIY 3Y] UO SIUDWISILISSIW Pa1934400Un Aue JO S1034J9 3yl pue 1ipne sy} Uo SJU3W31elSSIW
P31}11UsPI JO S103448 Byl 31eNn|eAd 0] pue Jpne a3y} wJiopuad pue uejd 03 J9pIO0 Ul AljelI91eW SUILIISIBP 3M\ -

ALNVIEIIVIA]

(G3INNILNOD) LIGNY FHL 40 3403S



40

'S9143Ud [eusnof _

ul spuall Jo sauua |eusnol jensnun Ajpuspl o1 swesdousd / sanbiuyodel upne paisisse Jaindwiod s o
"9PI4ISA0 JUBWAZeuew _

JO ISI4 JO JOLID JO ¥SU JaySly e aAey 03 paiyinuapl uonejndod e wouy saldjud jeudnof jo ajdwes e 13| |
'saLIua |euanol pue Suiuodal [ejpueul) punose Sj0J3u0d pue sassadosd 1591 pue ‘a1epdn ‘Malndy e

yeoiddy upny pauueld Jo Alewwing

"3PIIIBAO B3] YlIM PIRIJ0SSE pned) JO XSl ayl pue Suipiodal [e1aueUly Ul 9PIIISAC |
JjuswiaSeuew Jo XS4 Syl 1531 03 sainpadold wuopad 0] Jolipne ue alinbas splepuels Sulipny ueipeued

SBupuoday |epaueuly ut 3pIBAQ JuIWAdeuey JO XSty -

b

"3AI123))3 pue JuaPIYS Uloq st 1eyl upne Aujenb ysiy
B J3AI|SP pue sainpadodd ino 1931e) 0} 9|ge aJe am ‘siallew asayl uo Suisndoy Ag "uoiielapisuod lpne |epads
aJinbaus ‘aunjeu Jisy1 Aq ey sienew Sunuodal jeppueuly Juediyiudis Ajiauapl am ‘Suiuue|d ipne Jno jo ued sy




41

"}pne s,4eah 1se| wouj palou S3IDUIIDIIP |0JU0D Aue 31eIpSwal JO 1331402 0}

uayel uaaq sey uoljoe Aue JI sulwISlap 03 Juswaseuew ypum sjuljod 19139 JuawaSeuew Jeah Joud MaINdY
"S|0J3UOD P3RIIUIPI || JO uoiiejusw|dwl

pue u8isap J19y3 alen|eAs pue pajusawajdwl $3s5320.4d pue S|0Ju0d 3y} Jo Sulpuelsiapun Jno epdn .

yoeosddy upny pauueld jo Aewwng

SSUCTENS
feioueul} ayl Jo jJuswalelssiw [eldlew ul Suilnsal 40413 pue pneldy 109339p 01 Suljie) S|0JIUOD JIAO HSiY

JUBLIBILISSIA [ELISIE §O HSIY [013U0D

(QINNILNOD) SHALIVIAI LIGNY LNV




42

‘sjunowe payiodal Jo Adeandde syl SSISSe 0} SINUIAII UOIIEXE] SO SUOIIR|NI|EIR] WIOLDd
‘'saoue|eq
Jo Alijiqeuoseal ay1 sulwia1ap 01 paodal SJUNOWE SNUAASJ JAAO Sanpadold |eannAjeue 19| dwo) .
‘|edl3jop SMO||e |0J1U0D 3Y] 1ey] Jo ‘spolsad |edsly Juanbasqns o) palldjap ale spuny
3y31 JI pauielqo uaa(q sey Japunj ayl wolj |eacsdde 1ey) AjluaA pue s3oesjuod 3uipuny JUBDJIUBIS [|B MIINDY
"3NUSABJ puNnoJe S|0JIU0d Jo uonejuswajdwi pue ugisap jo Suipuelsiapun ue ulelqQ

yaeosddy upny pauue|d jo Arewwns

"BNUAN3I
uonexe] Joj sajjiadoud Jo Jaquinu pue syuswaaiSe Suipuny y8noayy palerueisqns aq Ajisea ues syunowe jeyy
Ul SNU3A3J JO BJN1BU By} 01 3NP PI1ING3J SI INUIABJ JO JUBWSILISIDAO SUIpUNOLINS PNEl) JO 3SI pawnsald

JIBWAEISSI |eUIIRIA §O YSIY JuIBYU|

(Q3NNIINOD) SHILIVIAI 1INy INWDi:




43

‘payisse|d Ajaleridoidde aie anUBA3L PaJIDjap Se PIPJ0IDL pue J1ep 0} PAlII||0 SIUNOWE 3Y] Ji BUILIBIRQ -+
'95e3)| JO yoealuq ayl Suipiedal saiied panjoaul UIIMIBQ IUSPUOdSILI0d MIIASI pUe UIBYqO -

"10141S1(J [euOol183Y BUOIYILIIS XOWOD) PUe SUoIIeduNwwo)
As|lep paemAes yum soejd ul Agawioy juswaal8e ayy Suipunosins jusawaSeuew yum salepdn Aue ssnasig .

yoeousddy Mpny pauueld jo Atewwing

'suolles||qo pue san|eA AjliaA 01 s3oafoid asayl Sulpunolins sjusWdaI3e MIINAI _
pue uielqo pue ‘weq 3|3seIMaN 3yl uipnppul ‘s103foad juediudis Jo sniels ayl luswadeuew YlM SSnosIg .
_ ‘suol}ippe |exded sofew pue
220¢ ‘T€ 42quiadaQ Sulpua JeaA |easly ay3 4o} pariodas sasuadxa Suiiesado Jano Sullsal BAIIURISONS WIOLIRY -

ﬁ .mwmcmaxm gunesado jo JuswAed pue Indu ‘jenosdde ayl punoJde S[0JUOD pue S3ssa204d 21epdn pue MIIASY -«
._ yaeosddy upny pauueld jo Alewuns

JENT FUIIEIS0]

(G3INNILNOD) SHILIVIAI LiaNy LNV




44

"1IpNe 3y} JO uo11a|dwod 3y} 18 NOA 0} paJaAlRp aq 0} 1oday s8uipul4 3pNy Jno
Ul SUOIIEPU3WIWIOI3J JNO PUB SaNSS! 3saY1 JO siIsdouAs e apnjdul OS|e |[IM AN “JudwaAoLdw 3duewsopad
Joj suonepuawwodal Jno apinoid pue juswasBeuew yum sapiunuoddo yons Aue ssnasip |Im M

*S|0J3U0) 10 $3s553204d |euoliesado o
[eldUBUI Ul SJUBWaAoldwy Joy sajluniloddo Jo aieme awodaq Aew am ‘}ipne Jno Jo 9sinod ayl sulng

SNQILVAYISE( INIWINOHJIN] FONVIARHNOH-d

"P2J3PISUOI U3 10U AABY
sa1ep 1odaJ yupne uno o3 ueld Siyy Jo alep ay3 wol) 38e|jIA Y1 UIYHM Jnd20 1eys sadueyd Joyl0 49N3|
juswase3us ay3 u| paquasap suodwnsse ayy Uo paseq Sl 994 SIY] "1SD + 008°9TS S! 93} 7Z0T 1easy ayl

SNOILdIAINSSY aNV 5334



45

€20¢ ‘v |udy

[1ouno) pue JoAe Aq parosdde aq 01 SjuaWwale]s [e1ueul |

€207 ‘v [udy

[12UN0) pue JOABIA 01 SIJUDUISIEIS |BIDUBUL LRI JO UoISSIWANS |

€202 ‘8T Yaiey

JUSWSEUBW O} SJUIWISIELS [BIUBUIL 1P SPIACI] |

€20T ‘€T - Tz Aenugayg

YJOM p|3ij JIPNE pua-1eaA 311S-Uo 1PNPUO)) |

SSIER)

Sa|qeIanlaq

:uodn pasJise uaaq aney Mojaq
paledipui sajep pa1dadxa 9yl pue juswadeuew YHUM SI|qelanlap ypne A syl passnasip sAey I

ONiZ] L1




ejedeg sinesy Ja8euewy 3ipny

V) ‘vd) ‘uey) euueq J3M3IADY [043U0) AYEND Jaulied Em:.umnu:ﬁ
v ‘vdD ‘quietyaiag ; 13uped peatjuswasesuy

'$§3UISNQ INOA UO PASSNIO0Y
ulewas uaadxa Y3 3yl yum sjeuoissajold eyl 3UNSUa 0] JUSWHWWOI Jno ZuUlld3|48s ‘Weal IAIDS
3402 4no ulyum Anjenb pue Alinuizuod spinoad 03 panlils aney apn 93e||IA 3yl yum diysuoiie|al Jno anjea apn

V3] INJWIDYENS

46



syuawidolaasg pue sa1epdn swsd (¢
Joday Ssjoypny waspuadspui yeug (1

SADIANIddY

47



48

B2 edoqua mmm

S3ALVvOHd AVSOMON NYHD

PAT NOA 6dZ M6A

g ‘Aeuaninod g U9AlY Jjpgqdwed

SNUaAY all)D ¢EST-T0¢ 193415 ORIV 086
vD VdD ‘quien 3318

NOAJINVHL




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Mayor and Council of The Corporation of the Village of Sayward
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the Village of Sayward (the "Village"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the statements of operations, changes in net
financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the Village's financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Village
as at December 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended. The financial
statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our

report.

We are independent of the Village in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Village’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management intends for the Village to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for over-seeing the Village’s financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

49



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

@ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Village’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Village’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Village to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Campbell River, BC

April XX, 20XX

50



PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(PSAS) UPDATES AND DEVELOPMENTS

We have compiled a number of new Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) that are expected
to become applicable and be implement in the coming year(s). Please do not hesitate to contact
us should you wish to discuss any of them in further detail.

PSAS 3400 REVENUE

Application: Fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023, with early adoption permitted

Does this section apply to my organization?

This section will apply to your organization if you have general revenues outside of tax revenues,
government fransfers, financial instruments, revenue from government business enterprises or
inflows from restricted economic resources.

The standard is intended to clarify the recognition criteria for revenue that is receipted and
considered to have performance obligations associated with it.

If this applies - what does it mean for my organization?

If your organization has general revenues, those being revenues outside the above noted
categories, the standard may clarify that the revenue be recorded when received or receivable
unless you have a future obligation to satisfy that relates to the revenue.

This means there may be an overall reduction in the deferral of revenue with respect to general
revenues. Some examples of revenues which will no longer meet deferral criteria include drivers’
license fees, traffic fines or business licenses.

It is not expected that this new standard will have a large impact on the current reporting of
revenues for most entities as it further expands on the cument standard without materially altering
it.

- CHAN NOWGSAD BOATES 0
-
T %l—\ 51



PSG 8 PURCHASED INTANGIBLES

Application: Fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 with early adopfion permitted

Does this section apply to my organization?

If your organization has purchased an intangible asset, being an asset without physical substance
including but not limited to a fishing license or woodlot license, this guideline will apply to your
organization. This standard can be applied retrospectively (to previous years).

If this applies - what does it mean for my organization?

If this guideline applies you will now be able to recognize intangible assets like licenses as assets in
your financial statements. It is important to note that the asset must be purchased from a third party
to qualify, and intercompany transfers do not qualify.

PSAS 3160 PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

Application: Fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023, with early adoption permitted

Does this section apply to my organization?

This section will apply to your organization if it procures infrastructure using a private sector partner
who is obligated to 1) design, build, acquire or better new or existing infrastructure; 2) finance the
transaction past the point where the infrastructure is ready for use and 3) operate and/or maintain
the infrastructure.

If this applies ~ what does it mean for my organization?

If this guideline applies to your organization, you will recognize the infrastructure asset in your
financial statements when the organization controls 1) the purpose and use of the
infrastructure, 2) access to the future economic benefits or exposure to the risks of the assets,
and 3) significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the partnership's term. The
infrastructure would be amortized over its useful life.

faticnbepaca ~ CHAN NOwOsSAD BOATES

52



STAFF REPORT

For: Mayor and Council
Prepared by:  Keir Gervais, CAO
Subject: Rural Advisory Program Grant Application

Meeting date: February 21, 2023

BACKGROUND

The Rural Advisory Program (RAP), funded by the Province of B.C. and administered by Island
Coastal Economic Trust, supports forestry-reliant communities as they adapt to changes resulting
from B.C.’s new forest management system. The RAP provides financial assistance for temporary
employment opportunities to support communities impacted by the policy changes and other
economic impacts to the forest sector. This includes support for economic diversity and resilience
in rural communities. There are two funding streams available, with the Community-based
Advisors being the one Sayward can apply to:

» Community-based Advisors — 15 available grants of up to $70,000 for Indigenous and rural
communities to create a new one-year term position that provides community and/or
business advisory services.

DISCUSSION

Sayward has historically been a forestry-reliant community that has been and will continue to be
impacted by changes resulting from B.C.’s new forest management system, making the Village of
Sayward an ideal recipient of this grant.

While staff have not begun to prepare the application, if success in our application, generally
speaking the Community-based Advisor would support community economic development
through research, government liaison, applying best practices, communications and marketing.
The Community-based Advisor would work with both staff internally, local businesses and
stakeholders in local economic development.

Financial Considerations

Eligible program costs include: wages for new positions, statutory employment costs, and travel
expenses related to advisory activities. The work activities staff have identified to-date can be

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report - Rural Advisory Program Grant
Application.docx

53



2

accomplished without any increases to the operating budget. There would be no additional
financial impact as a result of hiring the Community-based Advisor.

Timeline

Staff has the capacity to create the required Job Description, Work Plan and complete the
remainder of the application itself in time for the March 17, 2023 deadline. If successful, staff
would advertise for applications in April, complete screening and interviews in May and prepare
to hire for the beginning of June.

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Council receive the Grant Opportunity: Rural Advisory Program Report.

THAT Council directs Staff to complete and submit a grant application to Island Coastal
Economic Trust’s Rural Advisory Program for the purpose of funding a Community-based
Advisor for a one-year term.

Respectively submitted,

Keir Gervais
CAO

Attachment:

® Rural Advisory Funding Program Application Guide

Z:\WORKING FILES\COUNCIL\2023\2 February\February 21\Staff Report - Rural Advisory Program Grant

Application.doc
pplt X 54



[ :\; ISLAND
— COASTAL
BRITISH ECONOMIC
COLUMBIA TRUST

Rural Advisory

Funding Program Application Guide




ISLAND
COASTAL
ECONOMIC

Together, we are working fo build a
sustainable and resilient coastal economy
in reciprocal relationships with communities
across the unceded territories of the
Kwakwala, Nuucaanut Ey7d&7juuthem,
Ligwilda'xw, Pentl'ac, She shashishalhem,
Skwxwu7mesh Hul'g’umi’num’, dufud?oofx,




ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

CONTENTS
ABOUT THE PROGRAM

Program Overview
Program Objectives
Available Funding

ELIGIBILITY

Eligible Applicants
Eligible Communities
Eligible Costs

Ineligible Uses and Costs

APPLICATION PROCESS
Intake Dates
Required Documents
Application Sulbbmission
Intake Process
Assessment Criteria

FUNDING TERMS
Funding Award
Reporting
Privacy and Confidentiality

O 0O 0O 0 ® oo 00T NN D

Application Support and Program Enquiries

57

3110




ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

ABOUT THE PROGRAM

Program Overview

The Government of B.C. and First Nations across British Columbia are working in
partnership to defer logging of old growth, while developing a new, long-term approach to
sustainable forest management that prioritizes ecosystem health and community
resiliency. As the forest sector faces a declining mid-term supply of timber, the focus is on
shifting from high volume to high value production.

The Rural Advisory Program has been designed to support forestry-reliant communities
as they adapt to changes resulting from the new forest management system. The Program
will provide financial assistance for temporary employment opportunities to support
communities impacted by these forest policy changes and other economic impacts to the
forest sector. This also includes support for economic diversification and resilience in rural
communities.

The Province of British Columbia, through the Ministry of Jobs, Economic Development and
Innovation, has partnered with Island Coastal Economic Trust to deliver the Rural Advisory
Program with $1.35M in available funding.

Program Objectives

= To support rural businesses and communities impacted by forest policy changes and
other impacts to the forest sector

* Increase community and regional adaptation, resilience, and sustainability

* Leverage existing local community/organization capacity to create incremental
support and resources for impacted businesses, workers, and communities

= Provide substantive services to impacted businesses and/or communities

Available Funding

The Rural Advisory Program supports the creation of new, temporary advisor employment
opportunities to help build capacity, resiliency and diversification in rural communities
impacted by forest policy changes and other impacts to the forest sector. Impacts include
forest sector mill curtailments, mill closures, declining fibre supply due to recent or planned
old growth logging deferrals, and the effects of a significant wildfire season.

Projects must be fully completed by August 31st, 2024 and final claims and reporting
submitted no later than September 30t, 2024.

58

410



ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

Two Funding Streams

Community-based Non-repayable contributions (grants)

Advisors *  Up to 100% of eligible costs to a maximum of
75 available grants $70,000

* Enables creation of a one-year term position to
provide community and/or business advisory
services to support economic diversification,
adaptation, or resilience to an eligible rural

community.
Regional Business = Non-repayable contributions (grants)
Advisors = Up to 100% of eligible costs to a maximum of
3 available grants $100,000

* Enables creation of a one-year term position to
provide specialized and/or sectoral business
advisory services to support impacted businesses,
workers and communities in a region or subregion
by providing specialized services and resources.

ELIGIBILITY
Eligible Applicants

The following organizations are eligible for Rural Advisory Program funding:

* Local governments (municipalities, regional districts, incorporated areas)

= First Nations governments (bands, corporations controlled by First Nations, not-for-
profit organizations established by First Nations governments)

* Legadlly incorporated not-for-profit organizations, including:
o Economic Development Organizations
o Industry Associations

o Business support organizations

Eligible Communities

Projects must be located in the Island Coastal Economic Trust service region.

Priority will be given to communities impacted by changes to the forest management
policy and other impacts to the forest sector.

59

510




ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

Eligible Costs

= Full-time or part-time term staffing wages for new positions
« Statutory employment costs
= Travel expenses related to advisory activities

Ineligible Uses and Costs

= Service duplication
= Displacing funding already in place for existing employment positions

= Positions combined with chief administrative officer, executive director, general
manager, or chief financial officer

* Non-statutory benefit costs including, bonuses, or allowance (such as vehicle,
phone, or living expenses)

= Costs related to recruiting, hiring, relocating, or terminating
» Office equipment, overhead costs, and general administration costs

» GST, legal, and/or insurance costs

APPLICATION PROCESS

Intake Dates

The Rural Advisory Program will accept applications until March 17t, 2023.

Required Documents

To apply for Program funding, you must submit:

= Completed application form
= Job description for the community or regional advisor position
*  Workplan for the community or regional advisory position {template provided)

Application Submission

We invite applicants to contact Hilary Muth, Special and Rural Projects Coordinator, at
hilary@islandcoastaltrust.ca to ensure eligibility and to advise on applications as early as
possible in the development of an application to the Program.

Completed application forms, including all supplementary materials, must be provided
electronically to Island Coastal Economic Trust by email: infomislandcoastaltrust.ca

60

6110




ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

Intake Process

sl No e

s DeCision:

STEP T APPLICATION SUBMISSION

The application form and supplementary Information must be submitted within the required
timelines. Incomplete applications will not be considered for funding. Applicants must also
submit a project workplan that will identify objectives, activities, and timing of the works to
be completed as well as a detailed job description.

STEP 2: ASSESSMENT

Program staff will conduct an initial review of all applications to ensure completeness of
documentatipn and program eligibility. As part of the due diligence process, applicants
may be asked to revisit steps to ensure the completeness and quality of your application. A
Program Review Committee will then evaluate against assessment criteria (outlined below).
Applications that best demonstrate that they meet the selection criteria will be prioritized
for funding.

STEP & NOTIFICATION OF DECISION

Final decisions will be provided within 10 business days of the intake period's close date.

STEP 4: CONDITIONAL FUNDING AGREEMENT

All approved applications are subject to the execution of a funding agreement, which will
include the terms and conditions of the approved funding. Please note that successful
applicants will have three months to complete their recruitment of candidates. If
recruitment cannot be completed within this timeframe, the Trust reserves the right to
cancel the project so that funds can be redistributed to another organization and project.

61

7110



ISLAND COASTAL ECONOMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

Assessment Criteria

All applicants must meet basic eligibility criteria. Eligible applications are assessed and
scored based on the information provided in the submitted Funding Application:

Implementation Anticipated Outcomes

| Scoring weight: 40% jl Scoring weight: 30% Scoring weight: 30%
—_— L F R T e
= Alignment with Rurall = Level of experience and | = Increase in business
Advisory Program resources to provide sector adaptation
objectives — community effective oversight to and/or community |
is rural or remote, carry out the project capacity

dependence on the

. * Work plan demonstrates | = Outcomes leading to
forest sector is

direct targeted support increased business and
demqnstrotgd, and services to business community resiliency and
ontnmpoted.lmpocts due and communities economic diversity over
to changes in the forest impacted by forest the one-year term and
sector are clear. sector changes and how building on initiatives
= Clearly defined | support and services will currently underway.
community need and | be monitored/measured.

| strong presentation of
how the new position will
meet this need.

| = Organization has staff,
resources, planning is
complete, hiring is in
process and ready to
start.

* Project activities and
hiring practices
demonstrate a strong
commitment to equity,
diversity, inclusion and
Indigenous reconciliation
principles.

FUNDING TERMS
Funding Award

Successful applicants will receive an initial payment (50% of the total grant amount) upon
receipt of a signed employment agreement (between the funding recipient and the
successful candidate). To request additional payments, approved applicants are required
to submit progress reports which include a description of activities to date.

62

8110




ISLAND COASTAL ECONCMIC TRUST — RURAL ADVISORY PROGRAM APPLICATION GUIDE

Reporting

Funding recipients are required to submit progress reports and a final report that outlines
the project’s performance and outcomes. Recipients are expected to track metrics
throughout the duration of project relating to the objectives listed in the workplan. Metrics
may include the number of businesses served, description of community or business
advisory services provided, description of community or regional diversification initiatives
and resources developed.

All approved projects are to be completed within the term specified in the funding
agreement, and no later than August 31st, 2024.

Privacy and Confidentiality

Applications submitted under the Program are subject to the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act. The information being collected is for the purpose of program
administration and the evaluation of eligibility.

All documents received by the Program are treated as confidential.

Once a project is approved, the name of the successful applicant, location, date of
approval, funding amount, and the project descriptions may be proactively disclosed to
the public.

Application Support and Program Enquiries

Hilary Muth,

Special and Rural Projects Coordinator
Island Coastal Economic Trust
hilary@islandcoastaltrust.ca
250-871-7797

63
9110



ISLAND
COASTAL
ECONOMIC
TRUST

108 — 501 Fourth Street Courtenay, BC V9N 1H3
250871 7797 info@islandcoastaltrust.ca

FIND OQUT MORE:
www.islandcoastalirust.ca




VILLAGE OF SAYWARD
BYLAW NO. 495

A BYLAW TO AMEND VILLAGE OF SAYWARD CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 442, 2018

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Sayward has adopted a Code of Conduct Bylaw;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Sayward wishes to amend “Code of Conduct Bylaw No. 442,
2018”;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the Village of Sayward, in open meeting
assembled, hereby enacts as follows:

1. CITATION

This bylaw may be cited as “Code of Conduct Amendment Bylaw No. 495, 2023”.
2. AMENDMENT

Code of Conduct Bylaw No. 442, 2018 is hereby amended as follows:

THAT Part 3, Section 8 (2) be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

8(2) Members of Council must not attend a meeting if their consumption of alcohol, cannabis,
or a controlled substance has impaired their ability to participate in the decision-making
process.

Read a first time on the 7" day of February 2023.
Read a second time on the 7t day of February 2023.
Read a third time on the 7™ day of February 2023.

Adopted onthe __ day of 2023.

Certified a true copy of Bylaw No. 495
this ___ day of ,

Mayor

Chief Administrative Officer
Village of Sayward

Corporate Officer

65



